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City of Holly Hill, Florida

Certificate of Achievement Awarded
For the Year Ended Septembér 30, 1999

The Government Finance Officers Association of the
United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
‘of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
the City of Holly Hill, Florida, for its comprehensive
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 1999.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
governmental unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report, whose contents conform to program standards.
Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one
Year only. We believe our current report continues to
conform to Certificate of Achievement Program
requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.






CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT
For the Year Ended September 30, 1999
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
» in Financial
Reporting

O Presented to

City of Holly Hill,
Florida

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 1999

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Letter of Transmittal






CITY OF LLY HILL

TEN SIXTY--FIVE RIDGEWOOD AVENUE
HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA 32117-2898
904/947-4120
FAXH# 904/947-4148
SUN COM 380-4120

February 28, 2001

Honorable Mayor Arthur, and
Members of the City Commission
City of Holly Hill, Florida

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Holly Hill, Florida, for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2000, is hereby submitted pursuant to the City Charter, Florida Statutes, and Chapters 10.500
and 11.45, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
data, and the completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the government.
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported
in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operation of the various funds and
account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
City's financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: mntroductory, financial, statistical and
compliance. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the City's organizational chart and a list
of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial statements and the combining
and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditors’ report on
the financial statements and schedules. The statistical section includes selected financial and demographic
information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. _

The City is required to make the determination whether the audit of the City’s participation in federal awards
will be conducted as single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of
1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Based on the level of expenditures directly related to federal awards the City was
required to have its September 30, 2000 fiscal year end audit conducted as a single audit. Accordingly, there
are supplementary reports and a schedule of expenditures of federal awards relative to a single audit presented
in the last section of this report. In addition, supplementary information is provided in relation to the reporting
requirements ofthe Rules of the Auditor General for state financial assistance and are also presented in the last
section of this report.

This report includes all funds and account groups of the City. The City provides a full range of municipal
services contemplated by statute or character. They include law enforcement and fire protection, development
services, sanitation and solid waste control, road and street facilities, parks and recreation facilities,
community redevelopment, and general administrative services.

viii
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This report also includes the Community Redevelopment Authority. Since its governing body is the same as
the City’s, and a separate legal entity was not formed with its creation, their financial statements are included
inthe City’s general-purpose financial statements as a separate special revenue fund pursuant to Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards No. 14 “The Financial
Reporting Entity.”

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City is located on the eastern end of the Interstate-4 (I-4) corridor, the economic zone of Central Florida
which roughly follows I-4 from Tampa through Orlando to the communities along the Atlantic coast in Volusia
County.

Growth along the I-4 corridor has been exceptional and is expected to continue. Growth in the City has been
favorable during the past year and is expected to continue during the coming year. However, due to limited
vacant land parcels and other resources, growth is slow at about 2% per year. Property valuations increased
during the past year by 7.5%. The City is encouraged by the number of voluntary annexation applications
received and by the number of new and expanding businesses that have applied for permits and licenses.
Opportunities for additional growth still exist in an already dynamic business and industrial community. The
community currently has a 3.0% unemployment rate as compared to a statewide rate of 3.9%.

Growth trends and their challenge to government are expected to continue. And while having a positive impact,
maintaining service delivery to the residential and business community continues to require innovations to

obtain and manage resources to meet the challenge.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

During the course of the year, the City Commission and staff pursued several major projects and programs.
Among the most significant of those projects were:

1. Recreation - A municipal swimming pool, locker rooms and pool equipment building were added to
the multi-purpose recreational facility previously completed in 1999, Funding for these additions was
provided by Community Development Block Grant funds and the Florida Recreation Development
Assistance Program as well as City funds.

2. Water and Sewer - Rehabilitation on about one-third of the City sewer system was begun at a projected
cost of $2.2 million. Rehabilitation will prevent infiltration of dirt and excess stormwater runoff into
the sewer lines by re-lining the pipes and/or replacing pipes where necessary.

3. Public Works - Phase II beautification of the medians in the northern one-half of the City on US #1
was completed with the assistance of the Florida Department of Transportation and its Highway
Beautification Grant. Planted with trees, bushes and flowers, the medians are pleasing to motorists
driving along this commercial corridor.

X
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4.

Stormwater Management - The Walker and 15 Streets drainage project was completed during the
year with the aid of Community Development Block Grant Funds and the City’s Stormwater Utility
fees. The Flamingo Area drainage project was begun during the year and will be funded with city
Stormwater Utility fees and assistance from the St. Johns Water Management District. These
improvements to the Stormwater Drainage System demonstrate City officials’ commitment to

- alleviating flooding and to protecting lives and properties.

PROSPECTS FOR THE FUTURE

The City adopted its first Long-Range Goals in February 1995. The goals were revised and updated in
February 1996 and in March 1998. The goals were revised again in January 1999. Several areas of progress
are noted below. o :

1.

To adopt and implement a plan to redeirelop the Tax Increment Financing District—CC1 Corridor.
U.S. #1 (also known as Ridgewood Avenue) is the main artery through the City. Numerous areas have
been upgraded or redeveloped in recent years. The City is committed to continuing this trend.

. Business owners are being encouraged to promote sprucing up the district and complying with
codes to create a pleasing and stable environment. The City’s median and other beautification
projects are inspiring efforts to enhance the area. ’

. The TIF District is beginning to generate additional revenues that will be utilized in the form
of grants for fagade improvements, tree planting and signage.

To develop a five-year capital improvements plan. The City is faced with limited funds to accomplish
numerous capital projects. The City is committed to developing a defined capital improvement plan.

. Completed plans include stormwater drainage, street paving, sidewalks, median beautification
and a multi-purpose recreational facility. Additional plans for water and sewer facilities arein
process.

To develop a five-year recreation plan. The City is committed to providing a variety of recreational
programs for all age groups at a reasonable fee.

. Additional recreational facilities such as tennis and racquetball courts, a multi-purpose playing
field and a wellness center are planned.

To create a better “people” environment for the city. The City Commission will institute policies to
create a better environment for all residents, business owners, staff, and visitors to the City.
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. The 2nd annual awards to the Employee of the Year and the Citizen of the Year was expanded
to include a Business of the Year award. Joint efforts between the City and its employees and
board members and the Chamber of Commerce and the local businesses to promote
communication and understanding is proving to be successful within the community.

. A special Centennial celebration for the City’s 100" Birthday on July 1, 2001 is planned. It
is expected to be a three day event complete with fireworks, a camival and various other
programs. Community involvement in this project is highly anticipated.

5. To enhance the City’s code enforcement efforts. For the benefit of the residents and businesses, the
City recognizes the need to enhance its enforcement efforts. '

. The next fiscal year budget provides for a full-time housing property inspector who will be
charged with enforcing codes in residential areas. This will enhance the efforts of the current
staff to encourage residents and businesses to meet code requirements and improve the
appearance of the City.

6. To continue and expand economic development activities. Economic development is acknowledged
as an important factor for the well being of the City.

. The City’s website, maintained by in-house personnel, is continually being enhancedto provide

information that is useful to developers. The Redevelopment Advisory Board for the TIF
District is an influential body furthering the development efforts of City officials.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed
to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. The intemal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1)
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgeting Controls In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the City Commission. Activities of all the governmental and proprietary funds are included in the annual
appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally
exceed the appropriated amount) is established by department or division within an individual fund. The City
also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Any
unencumbered balance of appropriations shall revert to the General Fund and be subject to future
appropriations. Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balance at year end. Budgetary
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control is maintained by a constant review of revenues and expenditures by the City Manager and Finance
Director. This budgetary control is communicated to the department heads.

As demonstrated by the financial statements and schedules included in the Financial Section of this
comprehensive annual financial report, the City continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management.

General Government Functions The following schedule presents a summary of governmental fund (General,
Special Revenue, Capital Projects, and Expendable Trust funds) revenues for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2000, and the increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues:

Percent 2000
2000 of Increase
Revenue Source Amount Total (Decrease)
Taxes ...... ... ... ... $ 3,312,574 546% $ 79,337
Licenses and permits ................... ... 179,580 3.0% (65,605)
Intergovernmental revenue .................. 1,712,567 28.2% 142,161
Charges forservices . ...................... 504,637 8.3% 29,654
Fines and forfeitures ................. ... .. 86,718 1.4% (20,527)
Miscellaneous revenue . .................. .. 270,214 4.5% 24,770
Totals ............................ $ 6,066,290 $_189.790

A summary of the individual components of the City’s governmental fund revenues are displayed in the
following graph:

Governmental Fund Revenues
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

| sso437)  SoureolRewen
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Intergovernmental
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Revenues received from governmental fund sources totaled $6,066,290 for the year ended September 30, 2000,
which represents a 3.2% increase of $189,790 over the amount earned in the previous year. Actual revenues
were greater than budgeted revenues by $289,062. The City experienced revenue growth in virtually all
revenue sources in 2000 without raising ad-valorem taxes. Revenue from business licenses and fines and
forfeitures were the only major revenue sources which experienced declines of $65,605 and $20,527,
respectively during 2000.

Ad valorem taxes continue to be the City’s most significant revenue source. The Commission’s efforts to
reduce ad valorem taxes in 2000 were successful. Tax revenues (which were planned to be reduced by 3%)
remained relatively stable during 2000 from the combined result of increased taxable values and new
construction in the City.  The total non-exempt valuation of all real property, subsurface rights, personal
property and centrally assessed property subject to ad valorem taxes amounted to $417 million, an increase
of $18 million, or 4.5% over the last year’s $399 million. Florida Statutes, Chapter 192, controls the
assessments and collections of ad valorem taxes. The County of Volusia, Florida, is responsible for assessing,
billing and collecting the City’s share of ad valorem taxes in accordance with Florida law.

The property tax levy during the current year was 5.09007 mills, or 3.0% below last year’s millage rate of
5.25000 mills. A summary of'the City’s millage rates and tax levies for each of the past ten years is presented
in Table 4 of the Statistical Section of this Report.

The following schedule presents a summary of governmental fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2000, and the increases and decreases in relation to prior year expenditures:

Percent 2000
2000 of Increase

Expenditure Function Amount Total (Decrease)
General government . . . .......... ... . .. . .. $ 1,026,223 16.8% $ (144,199)
Publicsafety ......................... ... 2,464,014 40.2% 144,678
Physical environment . .. ............. ... ... 307,016 5.0% (292,268)
Transportation ...................... ... .. 750,579 12.3% 115,946
Economic environment . .. .. ...... ... .. .. .. 82,565 1.3% (19,806)
Culture/recreation ................... .. ... 701,624 11.5% 69,524
Capitaloutlay ............... ... .. ... .. .. 561,102 92%  (1,077,608)
Debtservice ............ .. ........... . .. 229.883 3.8% 2,554

Totals .................. . ... ... ... $ 6,123,006 $(1,201,179)

A summary of'the individual functional components of the City’s governmental fund expenditures are displayed
in the following graph:

Xiil
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Governmental Fund Expenditures

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000
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Expenditures for the City’s general governmental functions totaled $6,123,006 for 2000, which represents a
decrease of $1,201,179 or 16.4% below expenditures of $7,324,185 last year. This substantial decrease was
directly related to prior year capital projects which were completed in the current year. Other reductions were
the combined result of a decrease in capital spending from grant related activities and from the Commission’s
desire to reduce governmental spending in 2000 to support a successful ad-valorem millage decrease.

General Fund Equity Balance For the second consecutive year in a row, fund balance in the City’s General
Fund increased by more than 25%. The unreserved (undesignated) portion of the fund balance increased
$453,814 or 29.0% over the amount available at the end of 1999, This increase provides the City with a fund
balance that is equivalent to 40.7% of the total expenditures of the prior year or an amount equal to fund over
21 weeks of operating expenditures. This indication of sound financial position will ensure the availability
of resources needed to continue providing quality services to the City’s citizens without imposing an undue tax
burden.

Enterprise Operations The City's primary government enterprise operations are comprised of two separate
and distinct activities: the Water and Sewer Utility Fund, the Solid Waste Utility Fund. The following schedule
presents a summary of enterprise fund revenues for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2000, and the increases
and decreases in relation to prior year revenues:

Xiv
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Percent 2000
2000 of Increase
Operating Revenue Source Amount Total (Decrease)
Watersales ............................. $ 1,754,010 329% $ 70,990
Sewercharges ........................... 1,835,692 34.5% 85,023
Waste disposal charges .................... 1,337,934 25.1% 38,595
Othercharges ........................... 50,109 0.9% (4,534)
Interestearnings .. ........................ 207,935 3.9% 46,851
Otherincome ........................... 140,383 2.6% 99,859
Totals ........ ... .. ... ... ... ... .. $ 5,326,063 $_ 336,784

A summary of the individual components of the City’s enterprise fund revenues are displayed in the following
graph:

Enterprise Fund Revenues

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

$1,754,010

Revenue Source
Watcr salcs
Other charges
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B
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$1,337,984
$207,935

The City’s combined enterprise fund revenues increased by $336,784 during 2000. The significant increases
in the charges for services in the enterprise funds were the combined result of increased consumer demand for
utility services and a 3.5% utility rate increase effective October 1, 1999. The increase in other income was
primarily attributable to the recognition of gains from the final disposal and adjustments of utility and solid
waste fund assets of more than $80,000 in 2000.

The following schedule presents a summary of enterprise fund expenses for the year ended September 30, 2000,
and the increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts:

XV
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Percent 2000
‘ : : : 2000 of Increase
Operating Expenses Amount Total (Decrease)
Personal:services ........................ . $ 825,964 24.4% $ 15,960
Materials and supplies ..................... 178,494 5.3% (43,445)
Utilities ........ R S S 197,194 5.8% (3,872)
‘Maintenance and repairs ................... 138,866 4.1% (34,370)
Contractual services . ... ................ e 1,220,953 36.1% 130,944
Otherexpenses .......................... 27,958 0.8%: (11,491)
Baddebts .............................. 23,759 0.7% (15,493)
Depreciation . ... .. A . 166.654 22.7% (21,281)
Totals . .................... e $ 3,379.842 ' $ 16,952

The City’s enterprise fund expenses are composed of the following:

Enterprise Fund Expenses

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

Personnel
Supplies

Utilities
Maintenance
Contractual
Other
Bad debts

g ' Depreciation

The decreases in utility operating expenses experienced in 2000 resulted primarily from reductions of supply
costs and maintenance and repair expenses due in part to the recent replacement and rehabilitation of a
significant portion of the City’s utility plant assets. The significant increase in contractual services was directly
related to the City’s increased cleanup activities and above-normal debris removal and disposal costs incurred
subsequent to the summer storms experienced last year.

The City’s net income before operating transfers from its Water and Sewer Fund and Solid Waste Fund totaled
$889,197 and $204,642, respectively, for the year ended September 30, 2000. Operating transfers from the

Xvi
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Water and Sewer Fund to the General Fund totaled $450,000 (as reimbursement for administrative expenses)
compared with $440,000 in 1999. Operating transfers from the Solid Waste Fund to the General Fund and
Capital Projects Fund totaled $225,300 and $80,000, respectively.

Pension Trust Fund Operations The Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund was created by the
City under the provisions of Chapter 185, Florida Statutes. During the year, revenues were derived from City
contributions of $69,456, State contributions of $45,177, plan member contributions of $95,854, interest and
dividend earnings of $157,722, and net appreciation in fair value of investments of $577 ,021. Investment
expenses totaled $50,383 for the year. As of September 30, 2000, the net plan assets held in trust for pension
benefits totaled $5,500,525 which was 12.0% over last year’s amount.

The Municipal Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund was created by the City under the provisions of Chapter 175,
Florida Statutes. During the year, revenues were derived from City contributions of $38,966, plan member
contributions of $38,879, interest and dividend earnings of $83,285, and net appreciation in fair value of
investments of $81,637. Investment expenses totaled $28,965 for the year. At year end, the net plan assets held
in trust for pension benefits totaled $2,015,051, which was 2.1% over last year’s amount. During 2000, the
City did not receive the state contribution to the Plan. As a result, the City did not deposit the total required
contribution to the Fire Plan as determined by the October 1, 1999 actuarial valuation. The contribution
shortfall of $30,342, is expected to be funded with the receipt of state casualty insurance premium taxes in the
following year, at which time all funding requirements will be met.

The most recent actuarial valuations for each pension fund continue to reflect a positive trend in the growth

of both plans. The following is a summary of the contributions to the City’s defined benefit pension plans for
the year ended September 30, 2000:

Source of Contributions to Defined Benefit Pension Plans
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

Police Pension Trust Fire Pension Trust

Source of Eamnings
. Employer/City . Plan members
D State . Investment income

Xvil
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The City’s general employees, excluding police and firefighters, are provided pension benefits based upon their
individual dates of employment with the City. All general employees hired before J anuary 1, 1996 are included
in the Florida Retirement System of the State of Florida. This plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public
employee retirement system created and administered by the State of Florida, Department of Administration,
Division of Retirement. The City's payroll for employees covered under the plan totaled $1,377,329 for the
recent fiscal year. The City's contributions to the plan totaled $136,782 during the year.

Pursuant to Chapter 95-338, Laws of Florida, and Ordinance No. 2450, all new employees hired by the City
after December 31, 1995, do not participate in the Florida Retirement System. The City’s alternative
retirement plan is a defined contribution plan with an effective date of January 1, 1996. For the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2000 covered wages for employees participating in this plan amounted to $562,860; the
City contributions to the plan accounts of the participants amounted to $4 1,330 and employee contributions
to the plan amounted to $11,244.

Debt Administration At September 30, 2000, the City had no general bonded debt obligations outstanding.
Water and sewer revenue bonds issued in 1992 are rated AAA by Moody’s Investor Services and AAA by
Standard and Poor’s Corporation and are insured by Municipal Bond Investors Corporation. Debt service
payments during the year consisted of $295,000 in principal maturities and $326,589 of interest.

General Fixed Assets This group of accounts represents the fixed assets of the general government operations
ofthe City. These assets have been recorded on the books at cost and carrying value bears no relation to the
actual fair value of the assets. The total cost of general fixed assets at September 30, 2000 totaled
$14,986,107 as compared to $14,017,760 for the preceding year, an increase of 6.9%.

Cash Management Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in demand deposit and time deposit
accounts and U.S. Treasury securities ranging from 12 to 24 months to maturity. The City’s investment policy
is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio. Accordingly,
deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized in accordance with state statutes.
All collateral on deposits was held either by the City, its agent or a financial institution’s trust department in
the City’s name. At September 30, 2000, unrestricted cash was invested in interest bearing demand deposits
and with the State Board of Administration.

Interest earned on unrestricted funds for the past two years was as follows:

2000 1999
General Fund . ..... ... .. ... .. ... . .. . . . . $ 147,765 109,591
Special Revenue Funds ............ ... .. . .. .. 48,185 41,472
Capital Projects Fund ... ........ .. .. .. . . . . .. 20,829 47,157
Water and Sewer System Fund ... .. ... .. . . .. 171,731 107,789
SolidWaste Fund ................ .. ... .. . .. 36,204 53.294
Total interest earnings . . .......... ... . . .. $ 424,714 359.303
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The preceding amounts do not include interest and dividend earnings on the City’s pension trust funds because
these funds are not available for general City use.

Risk Management The City contracts for all known risk elements through the purchase of insurance from
outside insurance companies. In addition, various risk control techniques are in place to minimize accident
related losses. These include the establishment of safety rules and procedures, accident prevention training, and
the ongoing efforts of the safety committee, which is charged with (1) reviewing accident reports to identify
and verify their causes; (2) recommending corrective actions; (3) reviewing employee safety suggestions; (4)
hearing and investigating employee complaints; (5) investigating hazardous conditions, material or equipment;
and (6) recommending awards or penalties.

Allinsurance coverage is held by commercial carriers and no settlements in excess of claims have been incurred
during the past three fiscal years.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit The City Charter and State Statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants. The accounting firm of Brent Millikan & Company, P.A., was selected by the City Commission
to serve in this capacity. Their auditors' report on the general purpose financial statements is included in the
financial section of this report. Their reports on compliance and other matters is contained in the Compliance
section at the end of the comprehensive annual financial report.

Awards The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the government for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 1999. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing
conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government reports. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conformto program standards. Such report must satisfy
both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received a Certificate of
Achievement for the last 23 consecutive years. We believe our current report continues to meet the Certificate
of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

In addition, the City received the GFOA’s Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual budget
for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 1999. This is the eleventh consecutive year that the City has received
this prestigious award. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City’s budget
document was judged to be proficient in several categories including policy documentation, financial planning
and organization.

XI1X
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Acknowledgments The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis was made
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Independent Auditors’ Report






BRENT MILLIKAN & COMPANY, P.A.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Honorable Mayor, City Commission
and City Manager
City of Holly Hill, Florida

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida , as
of and for the year ended September 30, 2000, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of City of Holly Hill, Florida's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund, which statements reflect net assets held in trust for pension
benefits of $5,500,525 as of September 30, 2000 and changes in net assets held in trust for pension benefits
of $588,768 for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and in our opinion, insofar as it relates to data included for the Police Officers’ Retirement
Trust Fund, is based solely upon the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above présent fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of City of Holly Hill, Florida, as of September 30, 2000, and the results of its
operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 28, 2001
on our consideration of City of Holly Hill, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

205 MAGNOLIA ST. + NEW SMYRNA BEACH, FL 32168 « (904) 427-1333 + FAX (904) 427-5823 www.bmcpa.com

MEMBER: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Private Companies Practice Section



The Honorable Mayor, City Commission
and City Manager

City of Holly Hill, Florida

Page 2 of 2

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements of City
of Holly Hill, Florida, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial
statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the general-purpose
financial statements taken as a whole.

The information presented in the Statistical Section is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on it.

Breit Millib d bo., P

February 28, 2001



General-Purpose Financial Statements

(Combined Statements - Overview)

The diverse nature of a governmental operation and the
necessity of complying with legal provisions require
accounting systems unlike those commonly used by
commercial enterprises. Rather than establishing a single
unified set of accounts for recording and summarizing all
financial transactions, the accounts of a governmental unit
are organized on the basis of funds or account groups.

The general-purpose financial statements were prepared
to allow the user of the financial report to obtain an
overview and broad perspective of City of Holly Hill,
Florida’s financial position ahead of the comparable data
on a detailed basis by individual funds.



COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
September 30, 2000

With Comparative Totals for September 30, 1999
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Governmental Fund Types
Special Capital
Assets and Other Debits: General Revenue Projects
Cash and cash eqUIValents .............ccoceererrererrenserrsrsessrenenaesenne 3 1,826,098 937,812 101,353
INVESIMENLS ....coeveeiereeiereireeiereieereee e srereesscssseereseeneaes 530,134 0 0
Receivables - net:
DelinqUent taXES .......coceveerereerreerersnrernsnensssesssesesesessssssesesens 65,941 0 0
ACCOUNLS ..ottt eeeese e esssassebsassasssesessasnens 17,845 29,109 0
ACCTUE INLETEST ....cuenvneennceceeerereestsestess e eae s nen e nas . 143 0 0
LIBDS cooviiiectrcereeeeccttei ettt st s sttt neneees 40,627 0 0
Due from Brokers ..........ceevviverccereccuceneneerninensnenesesssssnssenesenns 0 0 0
Due from other funds .........ccccoeevrereerererereieeeeeeeeree e 13,676 1,183 0
Advances to other funds .........cccceeveveeueveecrieriieereese e 59,700 0 0
Due from other GOVEIMMENLS .........cccevvveerrerienreeiereereeseneeens 69,483 748 150,000
Prepaid HEmS ........ccceeeieirrreeninirnee et 30,342 0 0
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Sinking Funds ........cccccoovrninninnniseeeesseseee e 0 0 0
Renewal and Replacement Fund ........cccocoeervverieiecrinnnnennn, 0 0 0
Restricted Impact FEes ......cccovvoievrrernreenrierereeeeeeeeee, 0 0 0
Customer depoSits .........ceerirererirreierereeieeerereteeee e reveneans 0 0 0
Land ..ot 0 0 0
BUildings ...cccooereeueiiienirieinnieieeeeee st 0 0 0
Improvements other than buildings ............cceeevvierereirecnnnnen, 0 0 0
Machinery and €qUIPIIENt .........cocceeeervuerereeseererereeesserenenene. 0 0 0
Accumulated depreciation ...........ccoevvevevurnreeeseieeeieseeseeennne 0 0 0
Construction in Progress .........coeeevvrerrrereersreeserererenseseresesesssenns 0 0 0
Unamortized debt €Xpense ........coocvuereueveieeererererereienererereeeeans 0 _ 0 0
Other debits:
Amount to be provided for retirement
of general long-term debt ........cccccovvrivnrninereereerereee e, 0 0 0
Total assets and other debits.........cceoevvevveeeeeeeeerennnnn. $ 2,653,989 968,852 251,353

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Statement 1

Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups
General General Totals-
Fixed Long-Term (Memorandum Only)
Enterprise Trust Assets Debt 2000 1999
2,436,859 407,828 0 0 5,709,950 4,930,244
0 7,078,837 0 0 7,608,971 6,964,590
0 0 0 0 65,941 64,843
299,501 0 0 0 346,455 377,980
3,289 44,887 0 0 48,319 55,070
0 0 0 0 40,627 31,553
.0 150,000 0 0 150,000 0
6,107 0 0 0 20,966 88,575
0 0 0 0 59,700 59,700
94,103 46,781 0 0 361,115 373,083
9,457 0 0 0 39,799 9,239
35,401 0 0 0 35,401 17,569
508,398 0 0 0 508,398 313,862
135,239 0 0 0 135,239 48,515
518,980 0 0 0 518,980 490,848
154,739 0 1,367,000 0 1,521,739 1,521,739
10,847,325 0 3,648,857 0 14,496,182 14,157,136
8,839,275 0 7,635,752 0 16,475,027 15,710,505
6,750,554 0 2,307,915 0 9,058,469 8,981,347
(10,028,584) 0 0 0 (10,028,584) (9,443,056)
1,513,893 0 26,583 0 1,540,476 510,331
239,080 0 0 0 239,080 200,112
0 0 0 1,557,853 1,557,853 1,735,769
22,363,616 7,728,333 14,986,107 1,557,853 50,510,103 47,199,554

(Continued)...



COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
September 30, 2000

With Comparative Totals for September 30, 1999
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Liabilities, Equity and Other Credits:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable ...,
Contracts payable - 1etainage ..........coceveeereruenenincnns
Accrued labilities .......ccccoeverivnininiininecnneniininienns

Pension contribution payable ..........cc..c.cne...

Refundable deposits ........ccocvuveviniennerneennniennnens
Due to other funds .......ccceeceevveevervrecenreecerreeeeeeeenens
Advance from other funds ........cccceeevveeneinieicnecinnnne
Deferred reVenues .......ooeeeceevveenieeneernesieecreeeeseenns

Restricted fund liabilities:

Accounts payable .......cccoeceereecnnienneneneiniens
Customers' depOSits ......ceocereveereeeeerereereneeseereenenens
Current portion of revenue bonds payable ...........
Revenue bonds payable - net ........ccoeevvcrinenceceninns
Notes payable .......c.coceeevnrinnenninneerienieneenies
Obligation for compensated absences .........c..c.c......

Total Habilities ....covvvvvveiveeiireeveeceeeeee e,

Equity and Other Credits:

Contributed capital ........ccocevverrerneneenecreerenenene
Investment in general fixed assets .........cococeeeeeenenene

Retained Earnings:

Reserved for renewal and replacement ................
Unreserved ....cc.eoveeeveenrieierenieniniiiiiesiieceseis

Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances .......c.cc.cocceevcrneeunanen
Reserved for community redevelopment...............
Reserved for transportation .........cc.ccceceveeemeceenenes
Reserved for advances to other funds ...........c.....
Reserved for police education ........cccecceverecvnuinnnn,
Reserved for stormwater drainage ..........c.ceeeenue.
Reserved for capital projects ......c.coeeeeveeveeenicnnne
Reserved for law enforcement trust ...........cc......
Reserved for pension benefits ............ccccocenieninnee
Unreserved - Undesignated ..........cccooviiiiivnnincnnininnn,

Total equity and other credits...........cceueeeee.

Total liabilities, equity and other credits .....

............

..............

Governmental Fund Types

Special Capital

General Revenue Projects
110,670 431 0
0 0 0
165,740 10,090 0
30,342 0 0
1,892 0 0
89 748 0
0 59,700 0
170,514 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
479,247 70,969 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
69,363 0 0
59,700 0 0
17,595 0 0
0 893,113 0
0 0 251,353
0 0 0
0 0 0
2,028,084 4,770 0
2,174,742 897,883 251,353
2,653,989 968,852 251,353

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Statement 1

(Continued)
Proprietary Fiduciary Account Groups
Fund Types Fund Type General General Totals-
Trust and Fixed Long-Term Memorandum Only
Enterprise Agency Assets Debt 2000 1999
5 306,619 22,028 0 0 439,748 785,308
0 0 0 0 0 115,974
44,802 0 0 0 220,632 194,648
0. 0 0 0 30,342 0
0 0 0 0 1,892 1,632
0 20,129 0 0 20,966 88,575
0 0 0 0 59,700 59,700
0 0 0 0 170,514 139,494
5,908 0 0 0 5,908 13,758
518,980 0 0 0 518,980 490,848
310,000 0 0 0 310,000 295,000
12,819,408 0 0 0 12,819,408 13,116,755
1,415,479 0 0 1,117,069 2,532,548 1,324,147
110,655 0 0 440,784 551,439 545,501
15,531,851 42,157 0 1,557,853 17,682,077 17,171,340
3,311,710 0 0 0 3,311,710 3,208,550
0 0 14,986,107 0 14,986,107 14,017,760
508,398 0 0 0 508,398 313,862
3,011,657 0 0 0 3,011,657 2,867,654
;0 0 0 0 0 11,440
0 0 0 0 ~ 0 16,900
0 0 0 0 69,363 0
0 0 0 0 59,700 59,700
0 0 0 0 17,595 15,215
0 0 0 0 893,113 781,582
0 0 0 0 251,353 194,746
0 31,583 0 0 31,583 21,721
0 7,654,593 0 0 7,654,593 6,963,411
0 0 0 0 2,032,854 1,555,673
6,831,765 7,686,176 14,986,107 0 32,828,026 30,028,214
3 22,363,616 7,728,333 14,986,107 1,557,853 50,510,103 47,199,554




COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND SIMILAR TRUST FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1999

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Governmental Fund Types

Special Capital
General Revenue Projects
Revenue:
TAKES .eevreeenreeieeeieteetee e seseees e et tsses e et e s nee et sae e anea e 3 3,279,961 32,613 0
Licenses and PETIILS ......c.cccvuveererineirienenentsenserentrenensenesssessens 179,580 0 0
Intergovernmental ..........cccceieeerervenienieneneieeeeseeieereesesasesenses 1,170,485 350,502 191,580
Charges for SEIVICES .....cceverrereruererereeresererenenes . 137,894 366,743 0
Fines and fOrfeitlures .......covvevveervivererrereriveneereseseeseessscsnesnes 73,361 0 0
MISCEIIANEOUS .....veereerrereeirierirtrerreeereresieeeesersessesaereesesssnsnes 200,929 48,185 20,829
Total TEVENUE .....co.eveeirerireciereiereinreisreeeresensesensennas _ 5,042,210 798,043 212,409
Expenditures:
Current: .
General GOVEINMENL .......ccveeereerereererinrerenreiessenereesseeeens 1,026,223 0 0
PUbLiC Safety .....c.cocevvevrerieirireteeeene et 2,443,962 16,286 0
Physical environment ...........coceeveeeverereerererercresseresenereesenas 0 307,016 0
Transportation .............. eeeerteeerseesteesteerressaestassaensaeesssennren. 584,862 165,717 0
ECOnomic environment ............coceeeerverveereesveesrervenseereeseenns 0 82,565 0
CUlture/TECIEAtION ...cvvveeereeeeecetre et sne e 701,394 230 0
Capital OUtlay .....ccoveeririiireiiinreccce e 0 0 561,102
Debt Service:
Principal retirement ..........c.cocoeveerereinineneennreeneeiesaeennas 169,034 0 0
Interest and fiscal charges ........ccccoeevereenrienencnescnenenenn 60,849 0 0
Total expenditures ..........ccoeveeveeereerinieenreiereeenerenees 4,986,324 571,814 561,102
Excess of revenue over (under)
EXPENAITULES .....eovereereeeerieeiereieieisieeseseeeerenese s senee, 55,886 226,229 (348,693)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds of long-term debt ..........ccoviiiiiniiiiiccicniienne 0 - 0 0
Operating transfers in ........ccveceeereerereerenesresseereereresesessesnenens. 679,644 1,573 405,300
Operating transfers (OUL) .......cccovverevererevrnrerenereerenecereenens (226,873) (104,344) 0
Total other financing sources (US€Ss) .......cccovvrervrrennee 452,771 (102,771) 405,300
Excess of revenue and other sources
over expenditures and other USes ..........coceerveverrnnnen. 508,657 123,458 56,607
Fund balances, beginning of year ........c.cocoeeecennrriererrenennns 1,666,085 774,426 194,746
Fund balances, end of Year ..........cccoeeverevcrnreinsrenenrenesreseeseennes b 2,174,742 897,884 251,353

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Statement 2

Fiduciary
Fund Type Totals-
(Memorandum Only)
Trust 2000 1999

$ 0 3,312,574 3,233,237

0 179,580 245,185

. 0 1,712,567 1,570,406
’ 0 504,637 474,983
13,357 86,718 107,245

271 270,214 245,444

; 13,628 6,066,290 5,876,500
0 1,026,223 1,170,422

3,766 2,464,014 2,319,336

0 307,016 599,284

0 750,579 634,633

0 82,565 102,371

0 701,624 632,100

0 561,102 1,638,710

0 169,034 161,610

0 60,849 65,719

3,766 6,123,006 7,324,185
9,862 (56,716) (1,447,685)

0 0 0

0 1,086,517 1,658,117
0 (331,217) (367,817)

0 755,300 1,290,300
9,862 698,584 (157,385)

21,721 2,656,978 2,814,363

b 31,583 3,355,562 2,656,978




COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Revenue:

Licenses and permits ..........cccceereurvevnsuniesereecsiseseccnceene
Intergovernmental ..........ccceveerenreerevereneneenne eeneteenteeaeaaans
Charges fOr SEIVICES ...cevvivveerrerreeseeseessereasseseessaseessessesenssenean
Fines and forfeitures .........c.coveeeeeerrecerecenreneeerenresesresennas
MiSCEIIAnEOUS ....ocveeveevenreerreneenienereestreseresseseeesaesessasesnes

Total TEVENUE ......c.eveeenvieeteeceeceeceeecteeere e

Expenditures:
Current:

General GOVEIMMENL ........cccceveveererrerersereerereereesereensesssesenes
Public Safety .......ccceecireennenniiiinccneeneceneneeee s
Physical environment ............coeeereererennereseeseesserereeressenenns
TIANSPOTTALION ....cuvvevevereessrerseseesssasssessessssssessssensesssenanes
Economic environment ...........ccceeeeeueeeeeeeseneesscrienseneeneennas
CUulture/TeCreation ...........cevcerueeveeuererermereeneerereenensereseenennens
Capital OULIAY .....ccvvieiriieereeer e

Debt Service:

Principal retirement ...........ocoeveeeeenecrenennennnenessnreneneens
Interest and fiscal charges ........cccceveecieverierinnienineneninenne

Total expenditures ........ccoovviiiiiininiicninincnnne.

Excess of revenue over (under)

EXPENAItUTES ..covverenrereiriieieteerr e

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating transfers in ........ecceverevereecreniieereeenesreeeneeene
Operating transfers (OUL) ....c.cceevveererenrenrecerccneneeeeeneenennens
Appropriated fund balance ...........coviivinininiiniiinnnennne

Total other financing sources (USES) ......cccevrervenenns

Excess of revenue and other sources

over expenditures and other uses ..........cccoeveuenenn.
Fund balances, beginning of Year ........c.coceceeerreeerernrnnrrnnnenns

Fund balances, end 0f Year .........c.ccovereerernineceeercreenmneecnninsneneene

General Fund

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
.3,320,300 3,279,961 (40,339)
216,000 179,580 (36,420)

917,500 1,170,485 252,985

125,800 137,894 12,094
75,600 73,361 (2,239)

161,000 200,929 39,929

4,816,200 5,042,210 226,010

1,138,700 1,026,223 112,477

2,613,800 2,443,962 169,838

0 0 0

632,400 584,862 47,538

0 0 0

760,500 701,394 59,106

0 0 0

169,100 169,034 66

60,900 60,849 51

5,375,400 4,986,324 389,076

(559,200) 55,886 615,086
683,900 679,644 (4,256)

(233,300) (226,873) 6,427
111,300 0 (111,300)
561,900 452,771 (109,129)

2,700 508,657 505,957

1,666,085 1,666,085 0

1,668,785 2,174,742 505,957

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Statement 3

Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Fund
Variance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
32,600 32,613 13 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
395,100 350,502 (44,598) 109,600 191,580 81,980
360,000 366,743 6,743 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
40,200 48,185 7,985 9,900 20,829 10,929
827,900 798,043 (29,857) 119,500 212,409 92,909
0 0 0 0 0 0
16,500 16,286 214 0 0 0
589,700 307,016 282,684 0 0 0
165,800 165,717 83 0 0 0
99,700 82,565 17,135 0 0 0
200 230 30) 0 0 0
0 0 0 635,300 561,102 74,198
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0
871,900 571,814 300,086 635,300 561,102 74,198
(44,000) 226,229 270,229 (515,800) (348,693) 167,107
8,000 1,573 (6,427) 405,300 405,300 0
(108,600) (104,344) 4,256 0 0 0
144,600 0 (144,600) 110,500 0 - (110,500)
44,000 (102,771) (146,771) 515,800 405,300 (110,500)
0 123,458 123,458 0 56,607 56,607
774,425 774,425 0 194,746 194,746 0
774,425 897,883 123,458 194,746 251,353 56,607
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND Statement 3
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Totals - All Funds
Variance
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenue:
TAXES wecveereerrierrereereeseeriensesssestestessesseseesessassassesessensessessesesssonsons $ 3,352,900 3,312,574 . (40,326)
Licenses and PEIMtS ..........ccoecrereremnmnivirensinnieninneisseisnesenennses 216,000 179,580 (36,420)
Intergovernmental ..........cccovvvvreeenrerneeenrseesessssienceersssnssersessessenns 1,422,200 1,712,567 290,367
Charges fOr SEIVICES .....cccvereereererurrreseeerentrernesenenesssesessesassarannes 485,800 504,637 18,837
Fines and fOrfeitures .......coceereereererivernnrereereeressesssenseseesnens v 75,600 73,361 . (2,239)
MISCEIIANEOUS ....c.cveereeeerereeereesssssesesessssssnssesessssssessesssoresesenns 211,100 269,943 58,843
TOtal TEVENUE .....veeenreereeeeecrereree et rre e eeeeseeeseens 5,763,600 6,052,662 289,062
Expenditures:
Current: :
General GOVEINMENL ........cccecereeeereerenereneneenereeereesessasessssaeses 1,138,700 1,026,223 112,477
PUbLC SAfEtY .....cocveuieieirierenieeneecieirere et setseeesee et ese st eaeaeas 2,630,300 2,460,248 170,052
Physical environment .............cceeveverereerenserinneerssserssnsessessessnnes 589,700 307,016 282,684
Transportation .......c.cceeveeveeeeenirneerieneneneeneeee e eeerete e sassesanas 798,200 750,579 47,621
ECONOmic enVIrONMENL ........cccveevrverevrereeerseesresneesesseessseesssseens 99,700 82,565 17,135
CUulture/TECTEAtION ...veevvveeerreeeecereerreereteere et aeene 760,700 701,624 59,076
Capital OULIAY ....c.ocerveerecireeeieeriete ettt s 635,300 561,102 74,198
Debt Service:
Principal Tetirement .........c.cececeeereerenenenenreneneetreeeeeeeevessenees 169,100 169,034 66
Interest and fiscal Charges ........cccoeeeeeeinercercieneienecseeenenn 60,900 60,849 51
Total eXpenditures ........cccceevevieveeerereneneerenieierensens 6,882,600 6,119,240 763,360
Excess of revenue over (under)
EXPENAILUIES ....eenveneenireeeeierieerenecenee ettt seeee e esesanas (1,119,000) (66,578) 1,052,422
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers N .........coceeeeeeerrerennerenenisreserreessreseeeenens 1,097,200 - 1,086,517 (10,683)
Operating transfers (OUL) ........cocveeeererrerererrertrieneerenieiessssesessessanes (341,900) (331,217) 10,683
Appropriated fund balance ..........cccoeviiiininiinininennneniene 366,400 = 0 (366,400)
Total other financing sources (USes) .......ccceevververeernne 1,121,700 755,300 (366,400)
Excess of revenue and other sources
over expenditures and other uses .........cocccevvererrereennnnn 2,700 688,722 686,022
Fund balances, beginning of year .........c.coccveeeenenvrreerenenennnn. 2,635,256 2,635,256 0
Fund balances, end of year ..........cccoeevveveeenennreinenneneeecnenneenns 3 2,637,956 3,323,978 686,022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1999
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Operating Revenue:

Charges fOr SEIVICES ....cvvvmrerrrrrerirrenrerseeesessessceseeecessesnsaesassessssessesssesns

Operating Expenses:
Personal SEIVICES ..vevcrrereureererereeresesesseaesessesssessceecssnsesnes

Materials and SUPPLES .........cccuecuerescrreecrceneesisnnsnnsessessssessesssessssenens
Utilities ................ S, e
Maintenance and IEPAITS .........c.eeereriererriernsieressersssesesscnssesssensesessssasens

Contractilal SEIVICES u.euveuerereneerreneereeerersereeseseesessesessesssssssssesssns

.........

--------

.........

.........

.........

........

OLhET EXPEINSES ......ceueeeeureivsrerisisinssessiestrsse s essssssssseeesesensesssssassos '
Bad debts .......coccrueieriieinireinienesisieieness et ses et e s s neen

.........

Total Operating EXPEnSES .......ccccvvrerrvrreereerererseersiseececeecsesesnans

Total Operating iNCOME ........ccovovurerrerereerererereisteeeeeeeeeesenens

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):

INtETeSt €AMMINGS ..........cumveereemcrnereeerareeseirirsinssesses s sesssssstesseseesanenees
Operating grant IEVENUE ...........oeeeeeeeereruerireenererssiecassereseenseeeeesesesessensens
Other iNCOME (EXPENSES) .....vuvererrererrereerererertreetecaeeeseeeseeeeseesesessserns
INtErest EXPENSE ..........cuvuiurimeucrciciniecietrereteess st ss e
Total nonoperating revenue (EXPEnses) .............oevereveeevevreennenns

Net income before operating transfers .............cccoveevereneennnnnn..

OPErating tranSTers .........cc.evverereessenensensessesessessesse e sesseesssessessssesssans
Net INCOME (10SS) «.vrervrverevueirinrrisreinininisreeerstseeeeseeseseseeessenens

Retained earnings, beginning of YEar .......c..ccccevevveveeeceevieeeeeeeereeseennnn

Retained earnings, end of YEar ........cccovuevueeuererreceereeceeieeeeeeeee e

.........

.........

.........

Statement 4

2000 1999
4,977,745 4,787,671
825,964 810,004
178,494 221,939
197,194 201,066
138,866 173,236
1,220,953 1,090,009
27,958 39,449
23,759 39,252
766,654 787,935
3,379,842 3,362,890
1,597,903 1,424,781
207,935 161,084
4,271 1,023
136,112 39,501
(852,382) (866,744)
(504,064) (665,136)
1,093,839 759,645
(755,300) (1,290,300)
338,539 (530,655)
3,181,516 3,712,171
3,520,055 3,181,516

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1999
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Operating Activities:
Operating iNCOME (10SS) ......verrrvrirereereeieerrsereeraeesesssiseseseseesseessssssssss s
Adjustments to reconcile net operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities:
DEPIECIAtION ......eoveeeeerecreiecirereisesisisssnsssessse s seesssssessssecssseseasassessssse s sens
Bad debt EXPENSE ........cuueuuirercrereenisinssinnaie st se st st s e
Other INCOIME ......ceuceueueeeenceinensiseesessiesssessessessessesessssssesessessessssssemsessessssans
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts TECEIVADIE, DL ......ccveeveeererrrereciaerireceseeeeeeeeseeessesserese e sessesees
Other receivables ............. e sae et aes
Due from other funds ..........ccccoeueeurenisirrnsiesnnses et eeeseesessssasens
Prepaid EXPenses ........c.oceuveveueieerernininineesnesesesesssess s tseeeeae s ses s sesss e
Accounts PaYable ...
ACCTUEA HADILIIES .....cuveveeeeerereieserirerertesce et eeeeeseseeeesses s e nens
* Due t0 Other fUNAS ......ccovvererrurriereeinerreeee et eeeeeeeseeeseesseseessesees e s saees
CUStOMET dEPOSILS .....evveverenseeeneureeietierernieseesiesesee s sssesessesesssesesssseseses
Obligation for compensated abSences ................eueveeeeeeecuneereseersrereenn.

Net cash provided by operating activities.................corveveeureeeurreennnn.

Noncapital and Related Financing Activities:
OPperating grants ..........ccoeeeeeererreerssineonreressesnses e sseesssssseseessseessssssssesessenes
Operating transfers (OUL) .........ceeeereereererrrersesserserinieesseeeeseesseseseeesesssssessesrenes

Net cash (used in) noncapital and related
financing ACHVIHES ....ocovveuerrrreeereetereeeerereee e eeeeeeeeeeesse s s senns

Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capital CONIIBULIONS .......cccveimiereriiririeiieeie et eeeeesse e s
Proceeds on note payable ..............cevceveereuriinienieinnieeee e
Debt 1€dUCION OULIAYS ....v.vveeeerecrerereterereeer e eeeeee s s s
Acquisition and construction of capital aSsets .................coceeueeeeereersrersrorennns,
INEETESt PAIA .....coovveeiiicerire ettt ettt ettt

Net cash (used in) capital and related financing activities .................

Investing Activities:
Proceeds from maturity of inVEStMENLS ...........c.evverveereecereeeneeeseeeeereaeseeeereennns
Purchases of INVESIMENLS .......covuereeerrrrrrenrnieeceetes e sre e sees
INterest rECEIVEd ........ceeurureiieriereeieiete e,
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ..............o.vun......
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ........................

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of Year ............cc..cooeevveerererrreeesrerrnnnn,

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ..........c..co.eoveveeverrceeceeerennn. e,

Statement 5

2000 1999
1,597,903 1,424,781
766,654 787,935
23,759 39,252
57,523 39,501
9,558 (54,899)
(3,053) 9,137
8,710 157,926
(218) 22,420
3,299 (57,255)
6,635 2,855
(584) (151,649)
28,132 31,349
16,101 1,633
2,514,419 2,252,986
4,271 1,023
(755,300) (1,290,300)
(751,029) (1,289,277)
103,160 86,908
1,217,316 0
(295,000) (280,000)
(1,327,933) (401,591)
(827,324) (844,132)
(1,129,781) (1,438,815)
246,026 493,743
0 (246,027)
207,936 161,083
453,962 408,799
1,087,571 (66,307)
2,547,306 2,613,613
3,634,877 2,547,306

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS

ALL PENSION TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2000

With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 1999

CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA
Pension Trust Funds
Municipal
Police Municipal General
Officers' Firefighters' Employees'
Retirement Pension Retirement
Trust Trust Trust
Additions:
Contributions from:
EMPIOYET ...cevevreeeneetireenetiisnenisesissesestisessnssssssssssssesssenees $ 69,456 38,966 36,157
SEALE veerrereeieieereeeereeerrerraressrresressee s seesree st esbe st era et s r e b aenas 45,177 0 0
Plan members ........ccccueieieeretsnsnssnaeresenennans (R 95,854 38,879 11,244
Total contribUtions.......coeveeeevererrecrercrenrereseneesereenens 210,487 77,845 47,401
Investment income:
Net realized and unrealized appreciation .
(depreciation) in fair value of investments ..........cccoeueuene, 577,021 81,637 0
Interest and dividend earmnings ........cccovevuiivumnininicncninennen 157,722 83,285 16,552
734,743 164,922 16,552
Less: investment management fees .........c.ccoevueninrcrnnennns (50,383) (28,965) 0
Total investment INCOME .........ccoceevueruriieiercninianne, : 684,360 135,957 16,552
Total additions .......cceeeveereereererecreerereneeeeneesnreens 894,847 213,802 63,953
Deductions:
Benefit payments ........cccecceevvevceenennnininiineeeee e 190,469 132,745 0
Refunds/withdrawals ........ccoeoeieeeieinieonieenieenieneneeseeeneeeens 99,313 24,558 3,152
Administrative EXPenses ......coveerererrereiinriisennsseeieseeeseens 16,297 14,702 184
Total dedUCtions. ....c.cceevrcrereereenierenierericeereeneereneenes 306,079 172,005 3,336
NELINCTEASE .ovvvvievreecereeeieeereeeenreeieeeseresnessassaeessennne 588,768 41,797 60,617
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits: -
Beginning of year .......c.ccoeevvvinineniiiineeveinniee e, 4911,757 1,973,254 78,400
End of YEar ......cocceveviineerierieneercnenneeie e, 3 5,500,525 2,015,051 139,017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement 6

Totals -
1 Memorandum Only
| 2000 1999
i 144,579 172,738
3! 45,177 81,260
145,977 118,928
| 335,733 372,926
658,658 483,676
257,559 239,405
916,217 723,081
(79,348) (60,211)
836,869 662,870
1,172,602 1,035,796
323,214 323,214
127,023 27,109
31,183 40,604
481,420 390,927
691,182 644,869
6,963,411 6,318,542
7,654,593 6,963,411
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2000
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NOTE 1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING POLICIES

The financial statements of City of Holly Hill, Florida, have been prepared in conformance with generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard setting body for promulgating governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following
is a summary of the City’s significant accounting policies:

Municipal Creation and Organization

The City of Holly Hill, Florida, is a municipal corporation created by the Laws of Florida, Chapter 67-1274, located in
Volusia County. The City was originally incorporated under the general laws of Florida on July 1, 1901 (Records of
Incorporations, Volusia County, Vol. I, p. 101). This incorporation was validated in 1903 by Laws of Florida, Chapter 5346
(1903). The legislative branch of the City is composed of an elected five-member City Commission consisting of the Mayor
and four commissioners. The City Commission is governed by the City Charter and by state and local laws and regulations.
The City Commission is responsible for the establishment and adoption of policy. The execution of such policy is the
responsibility of the Commission-appointed City Manager.

Reporting Entity .

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of the applicable fund types and account groups governed by the City Commission of the City of
Holly Hill, Florida (the primary government) and its component units. The component unit discussed below is included in
the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationship with the City.

Individual Component Unit Disclosures

Blended Component Unit. The City of Holly Hill Community Redevelopment Fund was created by Ordinance 2426 to
account for the receipt and expenditure of property tax revenues from the tax increment financing district to support City
redevelopment. Although legally separate, the same elected City Commission members serve as the governing board of the
Community Redevelopment Fund. Since the City is financially accountable for the activities of the Fund, its governing board
is the same, and its relationship to the City is significant, its financial activities are reported on a blended basis as if it were
part of the primary government as a special revenue fund.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise
its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated
to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped in the financial statements in this report as follows:

Governmental Fund Types - Governmental funds are accounted for on a spending measurement focus. Only current
assets and current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources
(revenues and other financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other uses) of "available spendable resources” during
a period. The following fund categories are included in the City's governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the principal fund of the City which accounts for all financial transactions not
accounted for in other funds. The majority of current operating expenditures of the City other than proprietary fund

activities are financed through revenues received by the General Fund.

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than
expendable trust or capital projects) which are legally restricted for particular functions or activities of the City.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for the financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
September 30, 2000
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

Nork 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING PoLiCIES - (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund Type - Proprietary funds are accounted for on a capital maintenance measurement focus. All assets
and all liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their activity are included on their balance sheets.
Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components.
Proprietary fund measurement focus is upon determination of net income, financial position, and cash flows. The
following fund category is included in the City's proprietary funds:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises - where the intent of the City is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges. The acquisition, maintenance and improvement of the physical plant facilities required to provide
these goods and services are financed from existing cash resources, the issuance of revenue bonds, federal grants
contributions and other City funds.

Fiduciary Fund Types - Fiduciary Funds, which include trust and agency funds, account for assets held by the City in
a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and other funds. The
following fund categories are included in the City's fiduciary funds:

Pension Trust Funds - Pension trust funds (Police, Fire, and General Emloyees) are accounted for in essentially the
same manner as proprietary funds since capital maintenance is critical.

Expendable Trust Fund - Expendable trust funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as governmental
funds since the fund's resources may be fully expended for authorized expenditures.

Account Groups - Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the City's general fixed
assets and general long-term debt. The following are the City's account groups:

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This group of accounts is established to account for all fixed assets of the
City, other than those accounted for in the proprietary funds

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - This group of accounts is established to account for all long-term debt
of the City except those accounted for in the proprietary funds.

Measurement Focus Basis of Accounting
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its meastrement focus.

Governmental Funds Types

All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With this measurement
focus, only current assets and current liabilities are included in the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds
present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other uses) in net
current assets.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is utilized by the governmental fund types and the expendable trust fund.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they
become both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
"available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current period. The City considers property taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. A
one-year availability period is used for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is
recognized when due or when amounts have been accumulated for payments to be made early in the following year,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
September 30, 2000
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NoTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING PoLICIES - (CONTINUED)

and certain compensated absences and claims and judgements which are recognized when the obligations are expected
to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest earnings, and charges for
services. Fines, permits, and certain intergovernmental revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally they
are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues received as reimbursements for specific purposes or projects
are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded.

Deferred revenues are reported when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available" criteria
for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received by the City before it has
a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the resources,
the liability for deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

Proprietary Fund Types .

Proprietary and pension trust funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included in the balance
sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components.
Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases and decreases in net total assets.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary fund types and pension trust funds. Under this method, revenue
is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Based on the accounting and
reporting standards set forth in Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 20, “4Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and other Governmental Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting”, the City has
opted to apply only those accounting and reporting pronouncements issued by the GASB subsequent to November 30,
1989.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The City follows the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the accompanying financial
statements:

*  Onor before August 1st, the City Manager submits a preliminary budget to the City Commission for the ensuing
fiscal year.

¢ Budget workshop sessions are scheduled by the City Commission, as needed.

*  The general summary of the budget and notice of public hearing is published in a local newspaper.

¢ Prior to October 1st, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

*  The City Manager is authorized to transfer part or all of an unencumbered appropriation balance among programs
within a department and, upon written request by the City Manager, the City Commission may, by ordinance,
transfer part or all of any unencumbered appropriation balance from one department to another.

¢ The City Commission mustapprove all inter-departmental budget amendments and/or appropriations transfers. The
level of classification detail at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is within a department or
division by fund.

¢  Every appropriation lapses at the close of the fiscal year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
September 30, 2000
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NoTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING PoLicIES - (CONTINUED)

*  Thebudgets for all governmental funds that were either adopted or amended during the year by the City Commission
were prepared on the same basis of accounting utilized by those specific fund types. The General, Special Revenue
and Capital Projects Funds are required to have legally adopted annual budgets.

*  Under current budget policy, the management can amend a budget within a particular department, at the division
level only. Amendments from one department to another, must be approved by the City Commission, as the budget
is adopted at the departmental level.

Encumbrances

Throughout the fiscal year, an encumbrance system is employed to account for any commitments resulting from approved
purchase orders and contracts. Encumbrances are not treated as expenditures nor as liabilities, and as such are not recorded
in the formal accounting records of the City. While the City strongly encourages liquidation of all outstanding purchase
orders prior to the end of the year, outstanding encumbrances at year end, when applicable, are reported as reservations of
fund balance for subsequent years' expenditure based on the encumbered appropriation carried over. Appropriations lapse
at the end of the fiscal year. .

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City deposits all cash surpluses in interest bearing checking accounts. Earnings from these accounts are appropriately
allocated to the depositing fund accounts based upon the investment equity and are used, where applicable, to finance general
municipal operations. For purposes of proprietary fund statements of cash flows, all highly liquid debt instruments purchased
with original maturity dates of three months or less are considered by the City to be cash equivalents.

Investments
The City’s investments are reported at fair value. State statutes authorize the government to invest and reinvest any surplus

public funds in the following:

*  The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, or any intergovernmental investment pool authorized pursuant
to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act.

*  Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest credit quality rating from a
nationally recognized rating agency.

*  Interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories.

*  Direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or services
rendered. These interfund receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the

balance sheet.

Advances to Other Funds
Long-term interfund loans receivables are reported as advances and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account,
which indicates that they do not constitute expendable, available financial resources, and therefore are not available for

appropriation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
September 30, 2000
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NoTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING PoLICIES - (CONTINUED)

Receivables
Accounts receivable have been reported net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts which has been provided based upon
management's analysis of historical trends.

Operating sales of the City’s water and sewer system are recognized on the basis of the cycle billings rendered monthly.
Unbilled utility service charges are recognized and accrued at year end by prorating the first cycle billing subsequent to the
end of the fiscal year for the number of days applicable to the current year.

Restricted Assets

Restricted proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt obligations, restricted funds required to be set aside for restricted
purposes which cannot be used for routine operations are classified as restricted assets since their exclusive use is limited by
applicable bond covenants and other legal indentures. ‘

Fixed Assets/Utility Plant In Service

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets associated with a fund are determined by the fund's
measurement focus. All fixed assets of the City used in governmental fund type operations (other than those recorded in
proprietary funds), are general fixed assets. These assets belong to the City as a whole rather than to any one of the City's
individual funds and are accounted for by placing them in a single, self-balancing group of accounts called the General Fixed
Assets Account Group. The acquisition of these assets by the City is accounted for as an expenditure in the fund in which
it is made and also, as an increase in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. All purchased fixed assets are recorded at
the historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. All donated fixed assets are capitalized at their
fair market value at the date of donation. Certain "public domain" infrastructure fixed assets such as roads, bridges,
sidewalks, curbs, and drainage systems are capitalized in the accounting records. No depreciation has been taken on the
general fixed assets.

Proprietary fund fixed assets, including utility plant in service, are stated at historical or estimated historical cost. The costs
of additions, replacements, and renewals of units of property are appropriately capitalized. The cost (estimated, if not
known) of units of property retired, less net salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation and the appropriate asset account.
Donated assets are capitalized at estimated fair market value on the date donated. Maintenance and repairs of property and
replacements and renewals of items determined to be less than units of property, are charged to operating expenses.
Construction period interest is capitalized net of interest earned on unexpended construction funds in accordance with the
applicable provisions of Financial Accounting Standard Number 62, and therefore, depreciated over the remaining useful life
of the related asset. No interest cost relating to construction has been capitalized during the current fiscal year.

Depreciation is provided for by utilization of the straight-line method (half-year convention in year of acquisition) calculated
on a service-life basis to amortize the cost of the asset over their economic estimated useful lives which are as follows:

Buildings . ..o 50 years
Improvements other than buildings .. ..................... 10-50 years
Machinery and equipment . . .......... ... ... 3-30  years

Unamortized Debt Discount and Issue Costs

Bond discounts and debt issuance costs for the proprietary fund type are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds
using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. Unamortized bond discounts are presented
in aggregate on the financial statements as a reduction of the carrying cost of the related long-term debt. Unamortized debt
issuance costs are presented as other assets.
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Payroll and Compensated Absences

The portion of employees payroll costs paid subsequent to year-end attributable to services performed prior to year-end,
including accumulated unpaid vacation and sick-leave, is recorded and recognized as a liability. Since governmental fund
balance sheets reflect current liabilities, only the current portion of the liability is reported in the governmental fund. The
remainder of the liability is recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

Employee vacation leave is based upon the number of years of employment with the City and a portion must be used as time
off annually and the remainder can be used as time off or accrued. The maximum amount accrued varies with the general
and fire personnel and the police personnel, 90 days and 93.5 days, respectively. Upon termination, the employee receives
a cash benefit equal to the number of days accrued based on the employee's current wage rate.

Sick leave is granted to all full time employees. General and fire personnel can accumulate, at a rate of one day per month,
up to a maximum of 90 days. Upon retirement or death, employees are paid 100% of their accumulated unpaid sick leave.
Upon resignation, only those employees with 15 years of service are paid 50% of their accumulated unpaid sick leave. Police
personnel are granted extended leave to be used for illnesses involving absences of three or more days. The extended leave
accrues at a rate of four hours per month. There is no maximum accumulated amount, however payment is based on the
number of years of service with a maximum of 825 hours.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenues represent revenues which have been recorded as deferred (unearned) revenues until they become
"available" for revenue recognition. The deferred revenues in the General Fund represent delinquent unpaid taxes and
occupational license revenues received in advance of their effective dates.

" Long-Term Debt Accounting
The General Long-Term Debt Account Group was established for the purpose of recording and fairly presenting the City's
long-term debt at any time from date of issuance until the debt is finally retired. All long-term liabilities (other than those
recorded in the proprietary funds), are general long-term debt. These liabilities belong to the City as a whole and are
accounted for by placing them in a single self-balancing group of accounts called the General Long-Term Debt Account
Group. Long-term debt expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations is recorded and serviced in those funds.

Fund Equity

Contributions of capital to proprietary funds from any source received are recorded in an appropriately captioned contributed
capital account. Reserves represent those portions of fund balance/retained earnings which must be segregated for some
future use and which are, therefore, not available for further appropriation or expenditure. The description of each reserve
indicates the purpose for which it was intended.

Property Taxes

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal and school district property
taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Finance Director. The laws of the state
regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a consistent property valuation method statewide. State statutes permit
municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills.

Property taxes are levied November 1st of each year and payable from November through March, with a discount available
for payment prior to March 1st (4% in November, 3% in December, 2% in January, and 1% in February). All unpaid taxes
are delinquent as of April 1st of the following year. During April and May, a listing of parcels of property with unpaid taxes
is compiled and advertised. On June 1st (the lien date) tax certificates are sold on all real estate parcels with unpaid real
property taxes. A court order is obtained authorizing the seizure and sale of personal property if the taxpayer fails to pay the
delinquent personal property taxes by June 1st. Delinquent unpaid tax collections may remain uncollected for several years.

21 (Continued)...



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
September 30, 2000
CITY OF HOLLY HILL, FLORIDA

NoTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING PoOLICIES - (ConTINUED)

certificate sales proceeds or from foreclosure on assessed property. All delinquent past due amounts (which are measurable
but not available as of the end of the fiscal year) are recognized as deferred revenue until collected.

Interfund Transfers and Transactions
Transfers are recognized in the accounting period in which the interfund receivable and payable arise. Interfund transactions
are recorded as corresponding increases and/or decreases in each fund's equity in pooled cash, or as follows:

Quasi-External Transactions - Transactions which are treated as revenues, expenditures, or expenses if they involve
organizations external to the governmental unit are accounted for as revenues, expenditures, or expenses in the fund
involved, and

Reimbursements - Transactions which constitute reimbursements of a fund for expenditures or expenses initially
made from it, which are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures or expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of the expenditure or expense in the fund that is reimbursed, and

Residual Equity Transfers - Transactions which constitute nonrecurring or nonroutine transfers of equity between
funds are accounted for as additions to and deductions from fund balances which are extraneous to normal
operations; and

Operating Transfers - All other interfund transfers are treated as a separate item in each fund's statement of
revenues, expenditures or expenses and changes in fund balance if they are for the purpose of shifting resources from
a fund legally required to receive the revenue to a fund authorized to expend the revenue.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters, all of which is satisfactorily insured by general liability insurance.
Commercial insurance policies are also obtained for all other risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and employee
health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage
in any of the past three years.

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates
assumed in preparing the financial statements.

Memorandum Only - Total Columns

Total columns on the Combined Financial Statements - Overview are captioned "Memorandum Only" to indicate that they
are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. This data is not comparable to a
consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

Comparative Data/Reclassifications

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying financial statements in order to provide
an understanding of changes in the City's financial position and operations. However, comparative data have not been
presented in all statements because their inclusion would make certain statements unduly complex and difficult to understand.
Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s
presentation.
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The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except the pension trust funds. Each fund
type’s portion of this pool is included on the combined balance sheet in “cash and cash equivalents.” Earnings onpooled cash
and investments are allocated to participating funds on a monthly basis based on each fund’s investment in the pool. In
addition, investments are separately held by several of the City’s funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust
funds are held separately from those of other City funds.

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes, (The Florida Security for Public Deposits Act), the
State of Florida, Department of Insurance, Bureau of Collateral Securities, and the Department of Treasury have established
specific requirements relative to security and collateralization for public deposits. Accordingly, banks qualifying as a public
depository in the State of Florida must adopt the necessary procedures outlined in these statutes and meet all of the
requirements of this chapter to be designated by the State Treasurer as eligible to receive deposits from municipal depositors.
Collateral having a market value equal to 50% of the average daily balance for each month of all public deposits in excess
of any applicable depository insurance is required to be pledged or deposited with the State Treasurer to secure such deposits.
Additional collateral, up to a maximum of 125% may be required if deemed necessary under the conditions set forth in the
Act. Securities eligible to be pledged as collateral are generally limited to obligations of the United States government and
any state thereof and are held in the name of the State Treasurer's office. Compliance with the provisions of Chapter 280,
F.S., is monitored by the Department of Insurance.

Deposits

At September 30, 2000, the carrying amount of the City's deposits, including money market funds with financial institutions,
was ($95,209) and the bank balance was $70,726. The bank balance was both insured by federal depository insurance and
secured in accordance with the statutory provisions of the Florida Security for Deposits Act. Included in the carrying amount
of the these funds is $1,577 in petty cash, change funds, and undeposited receipts.

Investments :

The City's investment policies are governed by state statutes and local ordinances. The basic allowable investment
instruments include: Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund; negotiable direct obligations of, or obligations the
principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed by, the U.S. Government; interest bearing time deposits or
savings accounts in banks organized under the laws of this state, in national banks organized under the laws of the United
States and doing business and situated in this state, in savings and loan associations which are under state supervision or in
federal savings and loan associations located in this state and organized under federal law and federal supervision; money
market accounts that invest in U.S. Government obligations; obligations of Federal Farm Credit Banks, the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation, including Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation participation certificates; or the Federal
Home Loan Bank or its district banks or obligations guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association;
obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association including Federal National Mortgage Association participation
certificates and mortgage pass-through certificates guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association.

The City is a member of the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund that is administered by the State Board of
Administration of Florida (SBA). This fund is a 2a-7 like fund which has the characteristics of a money market fund. Thus
its cost is its fair value. Funds that have not been transferred to the state investment pool are placed in an overnight
repurchase agreement. The repurchase agreement balance is collateralized with securities held by the City’s agent in the
agent’s name.

The City’s investments are categorized into the following three categories of credit risk:

. Category 1 includes investments that are insured, registered, or for which the securities are held by the City or its
agent in the City's name.
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o Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the banks' trust
departments or agents in the City's name.

. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the banks, or by
their trust departments or agents but not in the City's name.

The City's investments are categorized as follows:

Carrying Fair

Type of Investment Category 1 Category2 Category 3 Value Value
U.S. Government agency securities . ... $ 0 530,134 0 530,134 530,134
Repurchase agreement .............. 0 0 445,000 445,000 445,000

Pension Fund investments with trustee:

Cash and money market funds ...... 0 0. 466,247 466,247 466,247
U.S. Government agency securities . . . 0 0 1,087,259 1,087,259 1,087,259
U.S. Corporate debt securities . . . . ... 0 0 1,643,422 1,643,422 1,643,422
U.S. Corporate equity securities . . . .. 0 0 _4258,104 4,258,104 _4.258,104

Sub-total ..................... $ 0 530,134 _ 7,900,032 8,430,166 8,430,166

Investments not subject to categorization:
Local Government Surplus Funds

Trust Fund Investment Pool:
Restricted . ... 1,198,018 1,198,018
Unrestricted . ...t 4983.964 4983964
Total .o $14,612,148 14,612,148

NotE 3 - Accounts RECEIVABLE - NET

The City’s net accounts receivable are composed of the following at September 30, 2000:

Governmental Funds Enterprise Funds

Stormwater Water and Solid
General Drainage Sewer Waste
Accountsreceivable . ........ .. ... . $ 17,845 38,507 267,222 112,773
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts ............. 0 (9,398) (53,347) _(27.147)
Net accounts receivable .................... $ 17,845 29.109 213,875 85,626
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NotE 4 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The City’s Individual fund interfund receivables and payables are composed of the following at September 30, 2000:

Interfund  Interfund
Fund Due From  Due To
Due to/from other funds:
General Fund ...ttt i e e e, $ 13,676 89
Special Revenue Funds: '
Stormwater DIainage . . ... .vvvvereetnntie ettt e 1,173 0
Community Redevelopment .............coiiiiiiiiiiiiiienneennnnnns 10 0
Community Development Block Grant .................. ... .o, 0 748
Enterprise Funds: '
Water and SEWeT ..t i ittt it it e e e e e e 6,107 0
" Pension Trust Funds:
General Employees’ Pension Trust Fund ............ e 0 20,129
TOtalS .« .ottt e $ 20,966 20,966
Advance to/from other funds:
General Fund . ...ttt e e $ 59,700 0
Special Revenue Funds:
Community Redevelopment ............ ..., 0 59,700
TOtalS oo e 3 59,700 59,700
NoTE 5 - FiXeEp ASSETS
A summary of changes in general fixed assets for the year is as follows:
Balances Balances
09/30/99 Additions Deletions 09/30/00
Land ... $ 1,367,000 0 0 1,367,000
Buildings .......... ... ... o ool 3,309,811 339,046 0 3,648,857
Improvements other than buildings . ......... 6,911,452 724,300 0 7,635,752
Machinery and equipment . ................ 2,181,297 166,189 39,571 2,307,915
Construction work in progress ............. 248,200 17,916 239,533 26,583
Totals ........ ..o $ 14,017,760 1,247.451 279,104 14,986,107
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General Long-Term Debt
The City’s general long-term debt consists of the following as of September 30, 2000:

Notes Payable to:
County of Volusia, Florida:
Noninterest bearing note payable dated January 24, 1995; $8,002 due semi-annually
through 2004, with interest imputed at 5%; unsecured (anticipated to be paid

£ with unencumbered General Fundrevenue) . .............. ... ... oo, $ 57,211
Sun Bank of Volusia County:
4.55% promissory note payable dated December 11, 1996; $28,281due semi-annually
, through 2001; secured by the City’s non-ad valorem tax revenues received by the City . . 81,037
4.84% Utility Service Tax Revenue Note, Series 1998A, dated April 14, 1998; $78,687
due semi-annually through 2008; secured by utility service tax revenues ............. 978.821
Totalnotes payable ...............ciiiiiiiiiiiiii i, e 1,117,069
Obligation for compensated absences ................oiiuiiiiiiiiiiieiiien 440,784
Total general long-termdebt ...........co oo $_1,557.853

A summary of changes in general long-term debt for the year is as follows:

Balances Balances
09/30/99 Additions Deletions 09/30/00
Notes Payable:
County of Volusia, Florida ............... $ 69,836 0 12,625 57,211
Sun Bank of Volusia County:
4.55% promissorynote ................ 132,078 0 51,041 81,037
4.84% Utility Service Tax Revenue Note,
Series 1998A ... ... ..l 1,082,908 0 104,087 978,821
Obligation for compensated absences ........ 450,947 0 10,163 440,784
Totals ........ccoiiiiiiiiiiin, $_1,735,769 0 177916 1,557,853

A summary of the City’s aggregate debt service requirements to maturity on general long-térm debt obligation (notes payable)
is as follows:

Volusia Sun Series

County Trust 1998A Total
Fiscal year ending September 30, 2001 ... $ 16,003 56,561 157,374 229,938
Fiscal year ending September 30, 2002 ... 16,003 28,280 157,374 201,657
Fiscal year ending September 30, 2003 ... 16,003 0 157,374 173,377
Fiscal year ending September 30, 2004 ... 16,003 0 157,374 173,377
Fiscal year ending September 30, 2005 ... 0 0 157,374 157,374
Thereafter ...l 0 0 394.709 394,709
Total requirements ................... 64,012 84,841 1,181,579 1,330,432
Less: amounts representing interest ... ... (6,801) (3.804) (202,758) (213.663)
Net principal amount . . ................ $___ 57211 81,037 978,821 1,117,069
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Enterprise Fund Long-Term Debt
The City’s enterprise fund (Water and Sewer Utility Fund) long-term debt consists of the following as of September 30, 2000:

Water and sewer Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 - - 5.00%
to 6.00%, due serially to 2007, with $2,605,000, $1,280,000, and $6,945,000 of

6.125% term bonds due in 2012, 2014, and 2022, respectively . .............covvin.. $ 13,410,000
Less: CUITENt MATUIITIES « . o v o vt v e et te e eaeenesaeenaeeanenneeneeneenenons (310,000)
Long-term revenue bonds payable ........ ... 13,100,000
‘Less: unamortized debt discount . ...... ...ttt e e i i (280.592)
Net long-termbonded debt . .........ouiiiiuii i 12,819,408

State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection-Clean Water State Revolving
Fund Loan Agreement-3.11% construction loan for wastewater infiltration and inflow
correction project, dated July 28, 1998, in the amount of $2,647,500, due semi-

annually beginning June 2001 through December 2020 ............... ... .coovitt. 1,415.479
Total long-term debt-net ... .......ovuuiiiiiitiiiii i $_14,234,887

A summary of the annual debt service and mandatory term bond amortization requirements to maturity is as follows:

Revenue Note
Bonds Payable Total
Fiscal year ending September 30,2001 ................ $ 1,121,544 0 1,121,544
Fiscal year ending September 30,2002 ................ 1,125,114 97,450 1,222,564
Fiscal year ending September 30,2003 ................ 1,121,964 97,450 1,219,414
Fiscal year ending September 30,2004 ................ 1,122,644 97,450 1,220,094
Fiscal year ending September 30,2005 ................ 1,121,656 97,450 1,219,106
Thereafter . . ..o vti i e s 19,111,600 1,559,205 20,670.805
Total requirements . .........ovvtirriiinnniannnn. 24,724,522 1,949,005 26,673,527
Less: amounts representing interest ................... (11,314.522) (533,526) (11,848.048)
Net principal amount ............cooiiiiiiiiiien. $_13.410,000 1415479 14825479

The authorization for the Series 1992 bonds provides that the City will not issue additional obligations unless they are payable
on a parity with the Series 1992 bonds and only upon the conditions and within the limitations of the authorizing resolution.
The bonds are payable from and secured by a first lien upon and pledge of the net revenues derived from the operation of the
City’s water and sewer system. The bonds do not constitute general indebtedness of the City, and the City is not obligated
to levy any taxes for the payment thereof.

Under the terms of its bond resolution, the City has agreed to maintain certain restricted funds and to comply with the
covenants contained in such agreements which require specific actions to be taken by the City. The resolution also provides
that monies on deposit in the various bond accounts may be invested in permitted investments, the definition of which
includes various securities backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government or its agencies, depository accounts
fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation,
commercial paper, money market funds, and bankers’ acceptances meeting requirements defined in the bond resolution, units
of participation in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, and any other investments allowed by Florida law.
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The following is a summary of changes in enterprise fund contributed capital for the year:

Balances Meter Impact Balances
09/30/99 Connections Fees 09/30/00
Water and Sewer Fund:
Contributions from:
Federal government .................. $ 919,421 0 0 919,421
Customers ..........cccviiiiinnnnnn.. 2,073,194 16,806 81,064 2,171,064
Solid Waste Fund:
Contributions from other Funds ........... 215,935 0 0 215,935
Totals ........covviiiiiiiiin... $ 3.208.550 16.806 81,064 3.306.420

NoTE 8 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The City maintains two enterprise funds which provide water and sewer services and solid waste collection services to citizens
of the community. Individual segment information for the year ended September 30, 2000, is as follows:

Water and Solid
Sewer Waste Total

Operating revenue ..............c.ouueuumnennnnnnnnnn, $ 3,639,811 1,337,934 4,977,745
Operating expense:

Depreciation ............c.coiiiiiin 745,709 20,945 766,654

Other ... 1,448,382 1,164,806 2,613,188
Operating InCome . .. .....vvvrie e 1,445,720 152,183 1,597,903
Nonoperating revenue (€Xpenses) ....................... (556,523) 52,459 (504,064)
Operating transfers .. .............ooiieeeieennnnnin.. (450,000) (305,300) (755,300)
Netincome (10SS) «vvevennee et 439,197 (100,658) 338,539
Current capital contributions ........................... 97,870 0 97,870
Net working capital ............cccoiivieeeinnnnnnn.. 2,053,796 444,099 2,497,895
Fixed asset acquisitions, including capitalized interest . ... ... 1,345,025 - 0 1,345,025
Fixed assetretirements . ..............coeeeerennn ... (102,536) 0 (102,536)
Totalassets .. ...t 21,755,721 607,895 22,363,616
Total liabilities . ...t 15,433,060 98,791 15,531,851
Fundequity ....... ..o 6,322,661 509,104 6,831,765

NotE 9 - PensioN PLANS

General Employees - Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description. (Pre-01/01/96 general employees) The City contributes to the Florida Retirement System (the “FRS™) of
the State of Florida, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement systemcreated in December, 1970, thatacts
as a common investment and administrative agent for municipalities and other qualifying political subdivisions in the State
of Florida. The pension plan, which is administered by the State of Florida, Department of Administration, Division of
Retirement, provides retirement and disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. All retirement
legislation must comply with Article X, Section 14 of the State Constitution and with Part VII, Chapter 121, F.S.
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Both of these provisions require that any increase in retirement benefits must be funded concurrently on an actuarially sound
basis. The Florida Retirement Systemissues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the plan. That report may be obtained by writing to Florida Retirement System, Department
of Administration, Division of Retirement, Cedars Executive Center, Building C, 2639 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL
32399-1560, or calling 850-488-5706.

Funding Policy. The FRS funding policy provides for required monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates
that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll are adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.
Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates, established by state law, are determined using the entry-age actuarial
funding method. If an unfunded actuarial liability reemerges, future plan benefit changes, assumption changes, and
methodology changes are amortized within 30 years, using level dollar amounts. Except for gains reserved for rate
stabilization, it is anticipated future actuarial gains and losses are amortized on a rolling 10% basis, as a level dollar amount.

The required contributions to the plan for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2000, 1999, and 1998 were $136,782,$209,393,
and $292,000, respectively. The required contribution percentages for qualifying employee compensation were 9.15% for the
period from July, 2000 through September, 2000, 10.15% for the plan year ended June 30, 2000, 16.45% for the plan year
ended June 30, 1999, and 17.43% for the plan year ended June 30, 1998. There were no employee contributions made during
these years.

Defined Contribution Plan

The City contributes to the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund, a defined contribution plan which is administered by Florida
League of Cities, Inc., P. O. Box 1757, Tallahassee, FL 32302-1757. Under Resolution No. 61 and Ordinance No. 2417, as
amended, the City established this plan for all regular full time employees hired on or after January 1, 1996 by revoking its
participation in the Florida Retirement System pursuant to Chapter 95-338, Laws of Florida with respect to such employees.

Participants become eligible the first day of the month following their date of employment. Employees are required to
contribute 2% of their salary to the Plan and can voluntarily contribute up to an additional 8%. The City contributes 10% of
the employees’ salary to the Plan. Employer and employee contributions to the plan were $41,330 and $11,244, respectively,
for the year ended September 30, 2000. The City has the power to amend plan provisions at any time.

Police Officers and Firefighters:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans h

Plan Description. The City maintains and administers separate single-employer pension plans for all ehglble police officers
and firefighters, which assets are included in the Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund (the "Police Plan") and
Municipal Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund (the "Fire Plan"). Both Plans issue publicly available stand-alone financial reports
that include financial statements and required supplementary information for the plans. The Police Plan report may be obtained
by writing to City of Holly Hill, Florida Police Officers’ Retirement Trust Fund, Post Office Box 251485, Holly Hill, FL. 32125
or calling (386) 947-4175. The Fire Plan report may be obtained by writing to City of Holly Hill, Florida Firefighters’
Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, 1065 Ridgewood Avenue, Holly Hill, FL 32117-2898 or calling (386) 947-4173.

All certified police officers and firefighters are eligible to participate in the respective systems after employment. Benefits vest
with eligible employees after ten years of participation. The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are
provided in the various acts of the Florida Legislature, which created the funds, including subsequent amendments thereto.
More information relating to the funding methods, determination of benefits, and permissible investments for the Police Plan
and the Fire Plan can be found in Chapters 185 and 175, Florida Statutes, respectively. These statues provide, in general, that
funds are to be accumulated from employee contributions, City contributions, State appropriations and income from invest-
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ments from accumulated funds. The act also provides that should the accumulated funds at any time be insufficient to meet
and pay the benefits due, the City shall supplement the funds by an appropriation from current funds or from any revenues
which may be lawfully used for said purposes in an amount sufficient to make up the deficiency. The investments of the two
funds are administered , managed, and operated by their respective boards of trustees using the services of the City staff, local
financial institutions, and third-party fund custodians.

Full-time, uniformed police officers are eligible to participate in the Police Plan upon employment by the City. Full-time,
uniformed firefighters are eligible to participate in the Fire Plan upon employment with the City. Employees vest with full
benefits after 10 years of service. Normal retirement occurs for police officers at the earlier of age 55 and 10 years of credited
service or 20 years of credited service regardless of age but no earlier than age 55 for vested terminations. Normal retirement
for firefighters occurs at age 50. An independent actuary appointed by the Board of Trustees actuarially determines benefits
to be paid to retirees. Current membership in the pension plans is composed of the following:

Police Fire
. Plan _Plan

Participant data as of October 1, 1999, the

date of the most recent actuarial valuation:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits . . ......... ... ... ..., 9 7
Vested terminated employees ................ 0 0
Active employees:

Fullyvested ........ ... ... .o it 6 2

Nonvested ...........coiiiiiiiiaan... 17 9
Total participants ..............c..cu.... 35 18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies of the Plans. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized in presenting the pension
trust funds combining balance sheet and combining statement of revenue, expenses and changes in fund balance. Plan
receivables are short term and consist of contributions due from the City, State and/or from plan members. Plan liabilities
would generally include benefits due to plan members and beneficiaries and accrued investment and administrative expenses
and are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plans. The difference between total plan assets
and total plan liabilities at the reporting date are captioned net assets held in trust for pension benefits reserved for employees’
pension benefits and represent the net assets held.in trust for pension benefits.

Investments are reported at fair value and are managed by third party money managers-." Investments that do not have an
established market are reported at estimated fair value. Performance reporting, administrative expenses, and the City’s asset
valuation are based on the custodians’ determination of value.

Contribution Requirements and Contributions Made. The City provides contributions to the Police Plan and Fire Plan under
the authority of Chapters 185 and 175, Florida Statutes, respectively and pursuant to City ordinances. Employees covered
under the plans are required to make contributions of 11.2% [Police Plan] and 10.0% [Fire Plan] of their compensation. The
City is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the Plans based on the funding amounts determined by
the Plans’ actuaries.

The City has adopted GASB Statement No. 27 on pension accounting and reporting. This statement requires the computation
of a net pension obligation (NPO) or asset which would result if the City’s contributions to the pension funds did not equal
the annual pension cost as computed by the plan actuaries. During the current year, the City evaluated both plans to determine
the net pension obligation or assets at the end of 2000.
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NotE 9 - PensioN PLaNs - (CONTINUED)

The City’s annual pension cost and net pension obligations to the Police and Fire Plans were as follows:

Municipal Police Officers' Retirement Trust Fund

Annual Percentage Net

Pension of APC Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
09/30/99 ..t 0 100.0% $ 0
09/30/98 . v it e 0 100.0% 0
09/30/97 v oveit e 0 100.0% 0

Municipal Firefighters' Pension Trust Fund

Annual Percentage Net

Pension of APC Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
09/30/99 ... $ 55,571 100.7% $ (39,956)
09/30/98 ... .. 49,568 145.0% $ (39,541)
09/30/97 ...t 59,009 100.0% 0

The Fire Plan has been subject to the minimum funding standards since the adoption of the “Florida Protection of Public
Employee Retirement Benefits Act” (part VII, Chapter 112, Florida Statutes) in 1980. Accordingly, the City has funded the
actuarially determined required contributions for all years from October 1, 1987, through the transition date, October 1, 1997.
Thus, the Net Pension Obligation on October 1, 1997 is $-0-. ‘

The development of the Net Pension Obligation (NPO) in the Fire Plan through October 1, 1999 is as follows:

09/30/97 09/30/98 09/30/99

Actuarially determined contribution .. §$ 49,568 54,940
Intereston NPO ................. 0 . (2,966)
Adjustment . .......... ... 0 - 3.597
Annual PensionCost . ............. 49,568 55,571
Contributionsmade . .............. 89,109 55.986
Increase inNPO ................. (39,541) (415)
NPO - beginning of year ........... 0 (39,541)
NPO-endofyear ................ $ 0 (39,541) (39.956)

During the year ended September 30, 2000, the City did not deposit the total required contribution to the Fire Plan as
determined by the October 1, 1999 actuarial valuation. The actuarially determined minimum deposit was $108,187. Amounts
actually contributed by the City and covered Fire Plan employees totaled $38,966 and $38,879, respectively, for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2000. The remaining unfunded defined benefit pension contribution liability of $30,342 is
recognized as a fund liability of the General Fund at September 30, 2000. The contribution shortfall is expected to be funded
with the receipt of state casualty insurance premium taxes in the subsequent fiscal year. No corresponding receivable on the
Fire Plan’s statement of plan net assets and related addition on the statement of changes in plan net assets has been recognized
at September 30, 2000 since the amount was not appropriated by the City.
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Note 9 - PENsION PLANS - (CONTINUED)

The actuarial valuations for both plans were prepared in accordance with GASB Statements No. 25 and 27. Significant
actuarial assumptions used in the valuations for each plan are as follows:

Police Fire
Plan Plan
Contribution rates as of 09/30/99:
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